### IN THE COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI NO. 2007-CP-00544-COA

KENNETH DEWAYNE DAVIS

MAY 2 5 2007

AppellANT

VS.

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS State of Mississippi

APPEllEE

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Respectfully Submitted

Kenneth Dewyne Davis,#118297

D-D-37 3800 County Rd. 540 Greenwood, MS. 38930

## IN THE COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE STATE OF MISSISSIAPI NO. 2007-CP-00544-COA

Kenneth Dewayne Davis

Appellant

V5.

State of Mississippi

AppElleE

### Certificate Of Interested Persons

### STATEMENT OF ISSUES

- 1. INEFFECTIVE Assistance OF COUNSEL IN DENYING Appellant To His Right To Trial By Jury By The Use OF Threats And Coercion To Force The Appellant To Enter A Plea OF Guilty
- 2. Appellant's Pien of Guilty Was Not Voluntarily and Intelligently Guilty
- 3. Trial Court Failed To Conduct A Proper HEAring Pursuant To Rule 8.04 Uniform Rules of Circuit And County Court Practice
- 4. Appellant's Post-Conviction Motion Raised Facts Which Did
  Require The Trial Court To Grant An Expansion of the Record
  And Conduct An Evidentiary Hearing

#### STATEMENT OF CASE

ON or About November 1st 2005, the Grand Jury of Copiah County, Mississippi, returned a true bill of indictment charging Kenneth Dewayne Davis with the sale of a controlled substance, i. e., Marijuana, on or About the 6th day of October, 2004, contrary to and in violation of Section 41-29-139 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, being Cause Number 2005-0174-CR.

ON or About the 27 day of February, 2006, Appellant Kenneth Dewayne Davis entered a plea of guilty to the charge of sales of a controlled substance in Cause Number 2003-0174-CR, and was subsequently sentenced to a Term of Twenty-Five (25) years with the Mississippi Department of Corrections, with said sentence to run consecutively with Cause Number 2006-0042CR, Conspiracy To Commit Murder.

Appellant Kenneth Dewayne Davis did file on the 9th day of February, 2007, his motion for post-conviction motion pursuant to Mississippi Code Ann. Section 99-39-1 et. seg. (2005), being Cause Number 2007-0044.

The Circuit Court of Copiah County, Mississippi granted Appellant
In Forma Pauperis status and on the 15th day of March, 2007, did
file an order denying the motion for post-conviction. This appeal
stems from the denial of his post-conviction motion.

### Summary OF THE ARGUMENT

## Right To Trial By Jury By The Use Of Threats And Coercion To Force The Appellant To Enter A Plea OF Guilty

Appellant, Kenneth Dewayne Davis, (hereinafter known as Davis), while he was being held on the charge of conspiracy to commit murder in Cause Number 2006-0042CR, was informed by his court appointed attorney, Andre Degruy, (hereinafter known as trial counsel), that the prosecution did have another charge for the sale of marijuana that was pending against Davis, and that the prosecutor wanted to discuss a possible plea of guilty.

Davis informed his trial counsel that he had not sold marijuana to anyone, and was not going to plead guilty to that
charge. Trial counsel did state that the prosecutor wanted to have a
meeting about the charge. Davis agreed to the meeting and trial
counsel arranged this meeting.

At the meeting, the prosecution alleged that they, (the State), had evidence that would show that on or about the 6th day of October, 2004, Davis had met with MBN Agent James Ragan and Confidential Informant 078 At his mother's resident, and did then sale two (2) ounces of Marijuana to Agent Ragan. Davis did deny this

Allegation of the prosecutor, and did ask that the prosecutor to show him the evidence, The prosecutor refused to do so.

Davis' trial counsel stated that it would be best to plead guilty to this charge, so that all of this could be cleared up. Davis told his trial counsel that he was willing to plead guilty on the conspiracy charge, but, he was not going to plead guilty to a charge that he was innocent of. At this time, Davis told his trial counsel in the presence of the prosecutor, that, he was not pleading guilty to the sales charge and wanted to go to trial.

When Davis demanded a trial, the prosecutor did state that since the incident had occurred at the home of Davis' mother, that if Davis refused to plead guilty to the sales charge, that the State would seek an indictment against his mother for sale of marijuana.

Davis did then ask to speak with his trial counsel in priuate about this matter. Once alone, Davis did tell his trial counsel that he had not sold any marijuana, and that he did not want to plead guilty. Trial counsel told Davis that the prosecuter would indict Davis' mother and send her to prison. But if Davis would plead guilty, that his mother would not be implicated. Davis became confused and didn't understand how this could be happening, and asked that trial counsel to help him to prove his innocence. But trial counsel told Davis that he had no choice in the matter. That it was either he plead guilty, or that his mother would go to prison with him.

DAU'S NOT KNOWING the law, felt that he had NO Choice, but to plead guilty to save his mother. At this time, Davis did agree to enter a plea of guilty to the sales charge.

Trial counsel did conspire with the prosecutor, and did misrepresent the law about charges being filed against his mother
to coerce Davis to enter a plea of guilty to the sales charge.
The actions of trial counsel did frustrate and did deny Davis
his Sixth Amendment right not to plead guilty and have a trial
by jury.

It cannot be said that Davis' trial counsel was acting in the capacity of effective assistance of counsel as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment of the United States Constitution and his compareable rights pursuant to Article 3, Section 26 of the Mississippi Constitution.

Trial counsel's performance was deficient in going along with the prosecution in using coercion to get Davis to enter a plea of guilty to the charge of sales of marijuana. Davis did suffer prejudice by the unprofessional conduct of trial counsel, because if not for the deficient performance of counsel, Davis would have insisted on going to trial on the charge of the sale of marijuana.

## 2. Davis' Plea Of Guilty Was Not Voluntarily And Intelligently Given

Davis contends that Due Process demands that a plea of guilty should be voluntarily and intelligently given. Also Due Process is violated when the plea is the product or induced by threats or Coercion. So that, when a plea is entered or induced by coercion, it cannot be said to be a voluntary and intelligent plea. Such is the case sub judice, Davis' plea was given in violation of Due Process.

It has long been held that when a defendant is misinformed by his trial counsel, or trial counsel's ineffectiveness has a coercive effect that causes the defendant to plead guilty, that that plea has not been entered voluntarily and intelligently, so that the plea is subject to collateral attack.

Davis' trial counsel failed to render effective assistance of counsel, when trial counsel used coercion to cause Davis to enter a plea of guilty. Davis was misinformed by trial counsel and did enfer his plea of guilty involuntarily.

Davis Asserts that his ignorance, incomprehension and the blatant threats by the prosecutor and defense counsel caused his plea to be given involuntarily, and that he did not make a intelligent decision to enter a plea of guilty.

Davis' trial counsel was further deficient, when that attorney did coach Davis to lie to the trial court that his plea was not the product of threats or coercion. Trial counsel told Davis how to answer the guestions presented by the trial court Trial counsel did state to Davis that he should answer a certain way so that the court would accept the plea of guilty.

Davis did Ask trial counsel if he would be lying to the Court? Trial counsel stated that this was a lie out of NECES-sity, so that the trial court would accept his plea. Davis did state to trial counsel, that he did not feel right by saying things that were not necessarily true. But trial counsel did state that this had to be done, because if the trial court did not accept the plea, that the prosecutor would seek an indictment against his mother.

Davis contends that his right to due process was violated by the ineffective Assistance of counsel. That because of the violation of his right to due process, that his plea of guilty cannot be considered voluntarily and intelligently given,

3. Trial Court Failed To Conduct A Proper HEAVING PURSUANT TO
Rule 8.04 Uniform Rules of Circuit And County Court Practice
Rule 8.04 (A)(3) States the following:

3. Voluntariness. Before the trial court may accept a plea of guilty, the court must determine that the plea is voluntarily and intelligently made and that there is a factual basis for the plea. A plea of guilty is not voluntary if induced by fear, violence, deception, or improper inducements. A showing that the plea of guilty was voluntarily and intelligently made must appear in the record.

Davis appeared before the Circuit Court of Copiah County, Mississippi, to enter his plea of guilty. The circuit judge read the charge in Cause Number 2005-0174-CR, and then asked Davis if he was going to plead guilty? Of the which, Davis answered in the Affirmative. The circuit judge then stated he would accept the plea of guilty to the charge.

At this time, the circuit judge did ask Davis some perfunctory questions concerning whether Davis had been promised anything, and whether Davis was satisfied with his attorney. And Davis according to the prior coaching of his attorney answered these questions according.

Davis asserts that the trial court failed to form a factual basis for accepting a plea of guilty from Davis. Rule 8,04(A)(3) states that the court must form this factual basis for a plea of guilty to be valid. The trial court failed to assertain that the

Elements of the offense were present, and that what was charged in the indictment was actually was what Davis was entering his plea on.

DAVIS CONTENDS that A MERE READING OF the indictment in the present of Davis and asking him if he was guilty of this offense will not be sufficient to form a factual basis for the plea. Rule 8.04(A)(3) requires that the trial judge to question Davis personally to see if he actually did the crime and what Davis was admitting his guilt, was actually within the ambit of that as defined criminal in the indictment for this reason, Davis asserts that the trial court did not have a factual basis to accept his plea.

Davis Asserts that his plea was given in violation of due process which is guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment of the united States Constitution, and Article 3, Section 14 of the Mississippi Constitution.

4. Appellant's Post-Conviction Motion Raised Facts Which Did Require The Trial Court To Grant AN Expansion of the Record And Conduct An Evidentiary Hearing

Davis Asserts that the claims that he raised in his post-conviction motion, did meet the pleading requirements of Section 99-39-9 Mississippi Code Ann. (Rev. 2000), that the motion did raise questions that cannot be resolved short of an Evidentiary hearing. Davis is entitled to an Evidentiary hearing pursuant to sections 99-39-13 through 99-39-19 Mississippi Code Ann. (Rev. 2000), on the issue whether or not his plea of guilty was entered voluntarily and intelligently with an understanding of the Consequences of his plea.

DAVIS Also contends that the issue of his trial attorney's ineffectiveness cannot be decided by reviewing the record Alone. This issue cannot be resolved short of an in-Court opportunity to present witnesses and to fully develope the facts to show that his trial counsel's misrepresentation and ineffectiveness caused Davis to enter an involuntary plea.

### ARGUMENT

I. INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL IN DENYING Appellant TO

HIS Right To Trial By Jury By The Use of Threats And

Coercion To Force The Appellant To Enter A Plea of Guilty

The claim of ineffective assistance of counsel is judged by

the two-prong standard set-forth in Strickland v. Washington,

NGB U.S. UGS (1984). The two inquiries which must be made

under that standard are "(1) whether counsel's performance was

deficient, and, if so,(2) whether the deficient performance was

prejudicial to the defendant in the sense that confidence

in the correctness of the outcome is undermined." NEAL U. STATE, 525 So.2d 1279, 1281 (Miss. 1987). This standard applies to the entry of a guilty plea. Schmitt u. State, 560 So.2d 148, 154 (Miss. 1990).

In Hill w. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52 (1985), the United States Supreme Court held that "where, as here, a defendant is represented by Counsel during the plea process and enters his plea upon the advice of counsel, the voluntariness of the plea depends on whether counsel's Advice was within the range of competence demanded of attorneys in Criminal cases." Hill, 474 U.S. at 54 (quoting McMann v. Richardson, 397 U.S. 759, 771 (1970)).

Appellant Asserts that by the above standard he was denied the effective assistance of counsel when his trial counsel used threats and coercion that did force him into pleading guilty to something that he did not do. The Mississippi Supreme Court held in Dunn v. Reed, 309 50.2d 516 (miss.1975), that where a defendant had pleaded guilty under the mistaken advice of counsel, that this would amount to the ineffective assistance of counsel.

Appellant's trial counsel used the threat that if he didn't plead guilty that, the prosecutor would indict his mother as the alleged sale of marijuana was conducted on her premises.

Appellant did not want to plead to what he knew was a

bogus charge, but felt that he had No Choice, so that his mother would not be arrested. If Not for this false mis-representation of his counsel, he would have demanded a trial.

It has long been held that "A plea of guilty is more than an admission of conduct; it is a conviction. Ignorance, incomprehension, coercion, terror, inducements, subtle or blatant threats might be a perfect cover-up of unconstitutionality." Kercheval v. United States, 274 u.s. 220, 223 (1927).

Appellant's trial counsel's deficient performance did cause him to plead guilty, and he was prejudiced by the coercion and improper inducements to plead guilty, and, by the very fact that "but for his attorney's errors, he would have pleaded not guilty and would have insisted upon going to trial." See, Nelson v. Hargett, 989 F.2d 847 (5th Cir. 1993); Also see Hubbard v. State, 628 50.2d 1386 (Miss. 1993).

The actions of Appellant's trial counsel did frustrate and denied him of his Sixth Amendment right to a trial by jury, and of his comparable rights pursuant to Article 3, Section 26 to the Mississippi Constitution. The actions of trial counsel did deny the Appellant of his right to plead not guilty and demand his right to trial by jury. See, Uin U. Superintendent, Powhatan Correctional Ctr., 643 Fized 167 (44h Cir., 1981).

Appellant has met the two-prong standard of Strickland u. Washington, 466 u.s. 668 (1984), and he has been denied his right to the effective assistance of counsel. So that, if it were not because of trial counsel's ineffectiveness, he would have not plead guilty and would have insisted on going to trial.

## 2. Appellant's Plea Of Guilty Was Not Voluntarily And Intelligently Given

Where A defendant's plea of guilty is coerced or otherwise involuntary, any judgment entered thereon is subject to collateral attack. See on, Botkin u. Alabama, 395 u.s. 238 (1969). The Mississippi Supreme Court has held that to be enforceable, a guilty plea must emanate from the accused's informed consent. See, Uittitoe u. State, 556 50.2d 1062 (Miss. 1990).

Appellant's plea of guilty was not the product of his voluntary and intelligent consent on his part, this is so because of the spurious threats of the prosecutor and his court appointed counsel. The United States Supreme Court has held that "[A] guilty plea, if induced by promises or threats which deprive it of the character of a voluntary act, is void." See on Marchibroda v. United States, 368 U.S. 487 (1962).

A "voluntary plea" within the meaning of Mississippi Uniform Criminal Rules of Circuit Court Practice, Rule 8.04 (A)(3)," is one which is not induced by Fear, violence, deception or improper inducements." <u>smith v. State</u>, 636 so.2d 1220 (Miss. 1994). In the case subjudice, it cannot be said that Appellant's plea was a voluntary plea, because of the threats by the prosecutor and his afformey. The Mississippi Court of Appeals has held "where the defendant was literally misinformed and misled this Court has held that the defendant's plea to have been involuntary." <u>Bronson v. State</u>, 786 so.2d 1083 (Miss. ct. App. 2001). Such is the case of the Appellant, he was forced to plead guilty, so that his plea was not a voluntary act and should be vacated.

Davis' plea was further made an involuntary act when his trial counsel did coach him to answer the court a certain way, causing appellant to be exposed to perjury. Appellant's trial counsel stated that he must give certain answers so that the court would accept his plea. The Mississippi supreme Court has held that such a plea was not voluntarily given, and that, such a plea should be vacated and a New trial be given. See, Myers v. State, 583 soild 174 (Miss. 1991).

Appellant's plea is unconstitutional and he should be allowed to be placed by in the position he was in before he plead guilty. See, <u>Sullivan v. Pouncey</u>, 469 50.2d 1233 (Miss. 1985).

### To Rule 8.04 Uniform Rules of Circuit AND County Court Practice.

The Mississippi Court of Appeals has held that "factual basis is an essential part of the constitutionally valid and enforceable decision to plead guilty, and that basis cannot be implied from the fact that defendant entered a plea of guilt." see, Austin v. State, 734 So. 2d 234 (Miss. Ct. App. 1999). In the case now before this Court, the trial court failed to find the requisite factual basis to accept a plea of guilty from Appellant.

The trial court must have an evidentiary foundation in the record which is sufficiently specific to allow the court to determine that appellant's conduct was within the ambit of that defined as criminal. The trial court in the case subjudice, read the charge from the indictment, and then asked the appellant how he plead. Without doing anything more, accepted the plea. In doing this, without nothing more, did not satisfy the requirement that a factual basis did exist and should not have accepted the appellant's plea. See, Lott u. State, 597 So. 2d 627, 628 (Miss. 1992).

The trial court failed to form A factual basis before ACCEPTing the plea of Appellant. Rule 8.04(A)(3) states that the court must form this factual basis for the plea to be valid. The trial court did fail to assertain that the elements of the offense were present, and, that what was charged in the indictment was actually what the appellant was pleading.

The trial judge should have questioned the appellant personally, to see if he actually did the evime. So, when the trial court failed to do this, there was no factual basis to accept a plea of guilty from the appellant, and to enter a conviction against him, see, Nelson us state, 626 So. 2d 121, 126 (Miss. 1993).

Because of this fact, the plea should be vacated and he be allowed a NEW trial. See Harris v. State, 806 Soized 1127 (Miss. 2002).

# H. Appellant's Post-Conviction Motion Raised Facts Which Did Require The Trial Court To Grant AN Expansion of The Record And Conduct AN Evidentiary Hearing

A defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing to determine whether or not his plea was voluntarily and intelligently given. See, Alexander v. State, 605 Soized 1170 (Miss. 1992). Since the appellant raised a guestion of whether his plea was a voluntary and intelligent relinquishment of a known right or privilege, he should be allowed an evidentiary hearing to determine the voluntariness of his plea, See, Sanders v. State, 440 Soized 278 (Miss. 1983).

The Mississippi Supreme Court has mandated an evidentiary heaving on an ineffectiveness of counsel that raises the guestion of the exponeous advice given by counsel that does induce a defendant to enter a plea of guilty, see, Myers v. State, 583 50.2d 174 (Miss, 1991).

Appellant's motion has raised such questions of fact regarding his counsel's deficiences and the prejudice that he has suffered, and he is entitled to an Evidentiary heaving. See, Conner v. State, 684 So.2d 608 (Miss. 1996).

### Conclusion

Wherefore Premises Considered, Appellant moves this Court to vacate the guilty plea and order a NEW trial. Or in the Alternative, remand this case back to the Circuit Court of Copiah County, Mississippi for an evidentiary heaving to be had on his post-conviction motion.