IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

KENNETH DEWAYNE DAVIS

FILED

APPELLANT

VS.

AUG 27 2007 OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPPLEME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

NO. 2007-CP-0544

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: LAURA H. TEDDER

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

Proposition One Davis failed to show ineffective

Davis failed to show ineffective assistance of counsel and the trial

court correctly denied his motion for post conviction relief.

<u>Proposition Two</u> Davis's plea was voluntarily and intelligently given and the trial

court correctly denied his motion for post conviction relief.

<u>Proposition Three</u> Court conducted hearing properly pursuant to Rule 8.04 of the

Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice

Proposition Four The trial court was not required to grant an expansion of the record

and conduct an evidentiary hearing on Davis's Post Conviction

Motion and correctly denied said motion.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Davis failed to show ineffective assistance of counsel and the trial court correctly denied his motion for post conviction relief. Davis's plea was voluntarily and intelligently given and the trial court correctly denied his motion for post conviction relief. The record clearly showed that the trial court fully informed the defendant of the consequences of the pleas, maximum and minimum sentences and the Defendant's constitutional rights with regard to trial by jury, the

right to confront and cross examine adverse witnesses and the right against self incrimination. The record further showed that Davis represented to the Trial Court that no one had coerced or threatened him to induce his guilty pleas. Davis testified that he was satisfied with his attorney's performance and that he had not been promised anything to induce him to plead guilty. All of these solemn declarations by Davis in court and under oath carry a strong presumption of verity in the post conviction pleading. Davis's allegation in his Motion for Post Conviction Relief are completely unsupported and are insufficient to overcome this presumption. Therefore the trial court was correct in summarily dismissing the Motion for Post Conviction Relief without an evidentiary hearing or expanded record. Court conducted the hearing properly pursuant to Rule 8.04 of the Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice, clearly informing Davis of his constitutional rights to trial by jury, the right to confront and cross examine adverse witnesses and the right against self incrimination. The trial court was not required to grant an expansion of the record and conduct an evidentiary hearing on Davis's Post Conviction Motion and correctly denied said motion, since the evidence presented by Davis in support of the motion was insufficient to overcome the presumption of verity of his solemn testimony to the trial court.

ARGUMENT

Proposition One

Davis failed to show ineffective assistance of counsel and the trial court correctly denied his motion for post conviction relief.

Davis complains that his trial counsel was ineffective. This Court has held

that a valid guilty plea has been entered unless the trial court's decision was clearly erroneous. *Hamlin v. State*, 853 So.2d 841, 843 (Miss. Ct. App. 2003). A plea is considered "voluntary and intelligent" if the defendant is informed of the nature of the charges against him and the consequences of entering a guilty plea. *Id.* Brooks has the burden of proving that his guilty plea was involuntary and he must prove this by a preponderance of the evidence *Wilcher v. State*, 921 So. 2d 400, 401 (Miss. Ct. App.

2006).

Brooks v. State, 953 So.2d 291 (Miss. Ct. App. 1007)

Further, in the context of a guilty plea, Davis must show that his counsel's performance fell below the minimal range of competence expected of attorneys in criminal cases *and* that but for that substandard performance, he would have insisted on going to trial. *Alexander v. State*, 603 So. 2d 1170, 1173 (Miss. 1992).

Motions arguing ineffective assistance of counsel must allege with specificity and detial that (1) counsel's performance was defective and (2) that the deficient performance prejudiced the defense. *Strickland v. Washington*, 104 S. Ct. 1052 (1984). Defendants must prove that but for their counsel's deficient performance, the outcome would have been different. The defendant carries the burden of proof and the court will weigh the counsel's deficiencies under the totality of the circumstances standard. *Epps v. State*, 926 So. 2d 242, 244 (Miss. Ct. App. 2005).

Davis fails to present any evidence that his counsel was ineffective or, as he more clearly suggests, in a conspiracy with the prosecution. Without any evidence, Davis cannot meet his burden. The trial court correctly denied Davis's motion summarily, without hearing or expanded record.

Proposition Two Davis's plea was voluntarily and intelligently given and the trial court correctly denied his motion for post conviction relief.

A plea is considered "voluntary and intelligent if the defendant knows the elements of the charge against him, understands the charges relation to him, what effect the plea will have and what sentence the plea may bring. *Alexander v. State*, 603 So. 2d 1170, 1173 (Miss. 1992). Solemn declarations in court carry a strong presumption of verity. *Gable v. State*, 748 So.2d 703, 706. To survive summary dismissal, a collateral attack on a facially correct plea must include

supporting affidavits of other persons. Baker v. State, 358 So. 2d 401, 403 (Miss. 1978).

At the sentencing hearing Davis testified that his attorney had explained to him and he understood the nature of both offenses charged against him. (T. 32) Davis testified that he understood the rights he would have at trial if he chose not to plead guilty and he testified that he understood the potential penalties for each offense. (T. 32,) Davis also testified that he was satisfied with the advice and counsel of his attorney and that he was making his plea freely. (T. 33) The record clear reflect Davis's understanding of the nature of the charges against him, his rights at trial, his satisfaction with his counsel's representation and his intelligent and voluntary plea of guilty to both charges, as follows:

The Court: Has your lawyer explained to you, Mr. Davis, do you fully understand the nature of both of these offenses, sale of more than an ounce of marijuana and also conspiracy to commit the offense of capital murder.

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

The Court: And has he explained all the law relating to these offense to you.

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

The Court: Do you understand the nature of these offenses and all the law relating to these offenses.

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

The Court: Have you made sure that your lawyer knows all the facts and circumstances surrounding both of these cases.

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

The Court: And he's explained to you all the possible defenses.

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

The Court: Now, are you satisfied with the advice and help and

assistance that your attorney has provided for you.

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

The Court: No problems with your attorney; is that right.

The Defendant: No, sir.

The Court: After a full discussion of your case with your attorney, Mr. Davis, whose decision is it to plead guilty to these offenses.

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

The Court: Whose decision was it to plead guilty to both defenses.

The Defendant: Me, Your Honor.

The Court: Has anyone promised you anything or has there been any hope of reward to get you to plead guilty.

The Defendant: No, sir.

The Court: Has there been any force or intimidation used against you to compel you to plead guilty.

The Defendant: No, sir.

The Court: Are you pleading guilty because you are guilty of both these offenses.

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

The Court: No other reason.

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

The Court: Sir.

The Defendant: Couldn't hear you.

The Court: No other reason; is that correct.

The Defendant: No, sir.

(T. 7-9)

These statements on the record carry a strong presumption of verity which cannot be overcome by Davis's completely unsupported accusations. *Gable v. State*, 748 So.2d 703, 706 (Miss. 1999) There is no evidence anywhere in the record to support Davis's Motion to Vacate Judgment and Sentence and supporting brief filed with the trial court do not contain supporting affidavits of other persons. Therefore, the court correctly summarily dismissed the motion without at hearing. *Baker v. State*, 358 So. 2d 401, 403 (Miss. 1978).

<u>Proposition Three</u>

Court conducted hearing properly pursuant to Rule 8.04 of the Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice.

Davis alleges that the hearing was not sufficient pursuant to Rule 8>04 of the Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice. However, the trial court carefully and specifically questioned Davis to ensure that he understood the nature of the crimes with which he was charged, the nature and consequences of the plea, and the maximum and minimum penalties provided by law; and that he understood that by pleading guilty he waved his constitutional rights of trial by jury, the right to confront and cross examine adverse witnesses, and the right against incrimination. (T. 2-9)

The records reflects that the trial court established a factual basis for both charges.

Regarding the Davis's guilty plea to the charge of conspiracy to commit capitol murder, the record reflects the following exchange:

The Court: I want you to listen carefully to the state's attorney. She will explain what the evidence will be against you in both of these cases, what their case in chief will be, what evidence they seek to prove at trial. I want to make sure that the state's version of this case is the truth before we proceed. Okay? Listen carefully.

Ms. Buckley: In cause number 2005-0119CR E State of Mississippi v. Kenneth Davis, the state would be ready to proceed

with the lesser included offense of conspiracy to commit the crime of capitol murder. The state would be prepared to show that on or about the 18th day of November, 2004, here in Copiah County, that Serrell Belton, Tiki Harris, Jamar Watts and Fred Shannon willfully, unlawfully, feloniously and without the authority of law knowing planned with deliberate design to kill and murder one Corey Johnson. The facts would show that the conspiracy involved a certain amount of money being exchanged for the killing of Mr. Johnson, and I believe Mr. Davis would agree that not only he, but Serrell Belson had certain reasons or certain disagreements with Mr. Johnson.

The Defendant: Yes, ma'am.

Ms. Buckley: This would be in violation of Mississippi Code annotated section 97-1-1 and Mississippi Code annotated 97-3-19(2)(d), that being the conspiracy portion of the capitol murder indictment. This, I believe, is the only [omission] capital murder charge that would in fact include a lesser included offense of conspiracy because it was a murder for hire type situation. . . .

The Court: All right. Is that correct, Mr. Davis?

The Defendant: Yes, sir.

(T. 9-10)

The prosecutor read into the record the specific facts of the conspiracy to commit capitol murder and the charge of sale of more than an ounce of marijuana, specifically identifying the agent to whom the sale was made, the date and place of the sale, the witnesses to the crime and the positive identification of the substance as marijuana in the amount of 49.5 grams.

Immediately after this statement of facts by the prosecution, the trial court asked Davis "Is that true?", to which Davis replied, "Yes, sir." (T. 13, 14) This is more than a mere assent to a general statement of guilt, this was an averment that each fact stated was true and more than satisfies the requirements of Rule 8.04 of the Uniform Circuit and County Court Rules.

Proposition Four

The trial court was not required to grant an expansion of the record and conduct an evidentiary hearing on Davis's Post Conviction Motion and correctly denied said motion.

Section 99-39-11 of the Mississippi Code Annotated of 1972 (as amended) provides that "[i]f it plainly appears from the face of the motion, any annexed exhibits and the prior proceedings in the case that the movant is not entitled to any relief, the judge may make an order for its dismissal and cause the prisoner to be notified. Because the defendant has not submitted any supporting affidavits challenging the voluntariness of his plea, that issue is without merit and was correctly dismissed by the trial court with no hearing. The trial properly summarily dismissed the claims ineffective assistance of counsel due to alleged threats and coercion, lack of factual basis for the guilty pleas and failure to conduct a proper hearing pursuant of Rule 8.04 of the Uniform Circuit and County Court Rules, since the Davis's Motion for Post Conviction Collateral Relief. The record clearly showed that the trial court fully informed the defendant of the consequences of the pleas, maximum and minimum sentences and the Defendant's constitutional rights with regard to trial by jury, the right to confront and cross examine adverse witnesses and the right against self incrimination. The record further showed that Davis represented to the Trial Court that no one had coerced or threatened him to induce his guilty pleas. Davis testified that he was satisfied with his attorney's performance and that he had not been promised anything to induce him to plead guilty. All of these solemn declarations by Davis in court and under oath carry a strong presumption of verity in the post conviction pleading. Davis allegation in his Motion for Post Conviction Relief are completely unsupported and are insufficient to overcome this presumption. Therefore the trial court was correct in summarily dismissing the Motion for Post Conviction Relief without an evidentiary hearing or expanded record.

CONCLUSION

The State respectfully submits that arguments Davis's arguments are without merit.

Accordingly, the trial court's dismissal of Davis's Motion for Post Conviction Relief should be affirmed.